City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SPD-3289
Data Analytics Platform Design and Implementation

Addendum 

Dated 03/19/15


[bookmark: _GoBack]The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #SPD-3289, titled “Data Analytics Platform and Design” released on 2/18/15.  The due date and time for responses will remain as 4/13/15 @4:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	2/24/15
	3/10/15
	Some prices/rates might not be able to be fixed for a ten year term.  Is there flexibility in how we can respond?
	The pricing form included in the RFP is for five years.  Vendors are required to complete and submit that form.  The City will not require a fixed price for ten years. 
	The first sentence of Section 6.1 is changed to read as follows:
"Any contract awarded shall be for an initial term of five years, with the right to extend by the City for up to an additional five years; the contract shall include not only the development, implementation, and maintenance of the system, but also possible future enhancements/upgrades to the system." 
The first four sentences of Section 6.2 are changed to read as follows:
"Pricing shall be fixed and firm throughout the original contract.  Pricing shall include all travel expenses and taxes.  At the end of the initial five-year term, the Vendor may submit a written request for a price increase. The written request is to be at least 45 days in advance." 


	2
	2/24/15
	3/10/15
	References – If we are unable to provide a police department as a reference will that be acceptable?
	One of the minimum qualifications is that the Vendor’s Firm has provided lead services in designing and implementing a Data Analytics Platform or business intelligence system for at least 1 public safety agency of comparable size and complexity to the Seattle Police Department within the last three years. There is a similar minimum qualification for the proposed project manager.  As long all minimum qualifications are met, the firm is eligible to respond.
	

	3
	2/24/15
	3/10/15
	Are you interested in a cloud based solution?

	The City is not specifically seeking a cloud-based solution but would entertain such a proposal if the servers are located in the US and the City’s requirements, including security and interface requirements, can be met.

	

	4
	2/24/15
	3/10/15
	How connected is the Police department to the City’s data center?
	For security reasons, SPD has its own data center. SPD applications interface with City data center applications as needed.
	

	5
	2/24/15
	3/10/15
	Is there any hardware/software that you would prefer to leverage when designing this solution?

	Please see the Current System Overview (Section 1.7); Computing Standards and Interfaces (Section 1.8); and Data Source Systems (Section 1.9) of the RFP.
	

	6
	3/02/15
	3/10/15
	Section 6.2.1 references an “initial ten-year” contract term and the cost proposal worksheets only show pricing for 5 years. Can you clarify if you are looking for fixed pricing for 5 or 10 years??
	See response to question 1.
	

	7
	3/02/15
	3/10/15
	IN2.01: Ability to integrate with an Open Geospatial Compliant (OGC) system - Do you mean pull data from it or push data into it or embed analytics into the system? Can you provide some clarification??
	Key Geospatial functionalities include the ability to:
· Integrate data from disparate sources using Geospatial information to link them.
· Display information on maps, such as locations, results of analysis, etc.
· Perform Geospatial analysis on data including data not previously geocoded.  

To provide this functionality it is essential that the solution be able to integrate with OGC systems to process and aggregate data from disparate data sources as well as integrate geospatial data from other GIS systems to incorporate intelligent map layers for deeper analysis.  SPD understands the cost, licensing, and performance impacts of Geospatial data solutions and is not expecting that the DAP in its entirety be geospatially enabled. We expect the vendor to propose the capability where it best fits within their system

	

	8
	3/02/15
	3/10/15
	UI1.09: Ability to present drop down selection menus for any selectable element of an ad hoc query based on pre-defined values – Can you provide examples of “pre-defined values?”
	For example, SPD systems track Gender as Male, Female, or Unknown.  Those and only those values should be available on a drop down menu for restricting query results to a particular gender.  

	

	9
	3/02/15
	3/10/15
	UI1.11: Ability to present drop down selection menus for any selectable element of an ad
hoc query based on a “fuzzy” search of existing values – Can you elaborate on what you mean by “fuzzy” search of existing values?

	For example, if searching for incidents involving a subject named “Larson,” the system might also suggest responses for “Larsen” or “Larsson” if such names are in the database.
	

	10
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	Please provide an estimate of the total number of users of the DAP.
	We expect that a group of approximately 50 analysts and 50 command staff (captain and above) will use the analytics capabilities of the DAP for the first phase.  The number of simultaneous users would be smaller.  Up to two hundred additional supervisors (sergeant and above) will use the workflow capabilities of the DAP to receive and route EIS alerts.  Over many years, it is conceivable that all SPD employees—approximately 2000—would have access to the DAP
	

	11
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	Would SPD consider a hosted implementation of the DAP?  (i.e., the vendor would manage all hardware and software typically in the cloud at the vendor headquarters in the US. Data would be supplied to the DAP via a highly secure data feed from SPD.)
	See response to question 3.
	

	12
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	Would SPD consider a “remotely managed” DAP implementation? (i.e., the servers, data and DAP applications all run on-site at SPD or the City of Seattle data center, but the DAP server administration, software upgrades, reports etc. are managed remotely through a secure VPN connection from the vendor headquarters. In other words, no DAP administration required by SPD.)
	Yes for general routine maintenance (e.g., software patches, database administration/maintenance.) However, vendor must perform larger maintenance efforts on site (e.g., upgrade to new release of software, operating system, firmware; move to new hardware; etc.) and be able to respond on site rapidly to system problems. Vendors requiring access to SPD systems, data or networks must complete the SPD Vendor Background process.
	

	13
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	Will SPD entertain multiple pricing proposals within a single response?

	We are requesting one pricing proposal for each response.  There is space in the form to identify optional software and services.
	

	14
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	With regard to the Versaterm CAD and RMS data in the Oracle database:
a.       Can this data be accessed via ODBC or other generally available standard API’s?

	For the most part, yes.  Some of the data is in flat text files.
	

	15
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	b.      Does accessing this data require the use of a specific API supplied only by Versaterm?
	No.
	

	16
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	c.       If so, is there any cost to the DAP vendor for use of this Versaterm API?

	N/A
	

	17
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	d.      Is a database schema of the Versaterm data tables available to DAP vendors? 

	The database schema can be made available during an on-site briefing for Finalists.   Please see Section 1.9 of the RFP.
	

	18
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	The Gartner Excel spreadsheet on page 3 of the RFP identifies approximately 97 data fields that “are not tracked”.      
a.       Question: Does this mean that these data items are not currently captured and stored in any database or electronic format?

	Yes.
	

	19
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	In the RFP it states: “As such, over the course of the procurement for the DAP under this RFP, SPD will be engaged in a parallel effort to remedy the data gaps identified by Gartner.”    Please describe the project or activities that are in progress to address these data gaps: 
a.       Is Gartner or some other external Consultant doing this “data gap” remediation work?
	Gartner has recommended options for how the data gaps can be remediated.  SPD is currently evaluating which options to implement.  More information may be provided through addenda as available.
	

	20
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	b. Are new data capture processes being implemented to create electronic records where these do not currently exist for the “data gap” data items?
	  See response to question 19.
	

	21
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	c. Are additional staff being hired to do this data capture work?
	There are no current plans to hire additional staff for data capture.
	

	22
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	d. What tools are being used to capture this data – is this mostly Excel and / or Microsoft Access databases?
	Some data is captured in Access databases or Excel spreadsheets; some is written on paper forms; some is not captured at all.
	

	23
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	e. Are there any data fields that will not be captured in electronic format – for example handwritten free format text on a hardcopy form completed by an officer? Please describe.
	We will want the DAP to be able to reference narrative material, but we expect that it will be in electronic format.
	

	24
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	f.  Does this remediation effort include addressing data quality and master data management issues or is the effort focused exclusively on providing the ‘missing’ data in electronic format
	Data quality and data management are an important part of the remediation effort.  Please see the Statement of Work, Section 5 of the RFP.
	

	25
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	g. If data quality is being addressed, is there a specific software tool being used to address this?  (if so please provide the name of that tool / vendor?)
	No tool is currently being used.
	

	26
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	h. What is the anticipated approach if some of the data gaps still exist when the DAP is ready for use?   (will vendor project deliverables and timelines be adjusted for this?)
	The DAP will be an evolving platform for analysis.  There will always be data gaps, and those gaps will steadily be remediated.
	

	27
	2/25/15
	3/10/15
	i. Can vendors get copies of the blank forms that are used currently to collect the data manually?  (for those data items that form part of the “data gap”.)

	Vendors selected as Finalists will be provided copies of any forms that are used by SPD as well as more detailed information regarding SPD data systems during the on-site vendor discovery sessions.
	

	28
	3/02/15
	3/10/15
	Are the SPD open to a cloud-hosted environment or is on-premise hosting required?
	See response to question 3.
	

	29
	3/02/15
	3/10/15
	Can work be performed offshore?
	No.
	

	30
	3/02/15
	3/10/15
	The RFP states that this is a 10 year contract however the pricing sheet only covers the first 5 years – is this correct?
	See response to question 1.
	

	31
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Could you please expedite the answers to the following two questions asked at the pre-proposal conference as they are critical to our proposal strategy?
a. Would SPD consider a hosted implementation of the DAP? (i.e., the vendor would manage all hardware and software typically in the cloud at the vendor headquarters in the US. Data would be supplied to the DAP via a highly secure data feed from SPD.)
	See response to Question 3.
	

	32
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	b. Would SPD consider a "remotely managed" DAP implementation? (i.e., the servers, data and DAP applications all run on-site at SPD or the City of Seattle data center, but the DAP server administration, software upgrades, reports etc. are managed remotely through a secure VPN connection from the vendor headquarters. In other words, no DAP administration required by SPD.)
	See response to Question 12.
	

	33
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	In section 6.2 Rates and Prices, it is stated that pricing shall be fixed and firm throughout the original contract of 10 years. However, during the pre-proposal conference, it was stated that the pricing should be for 5 years and the contract life would be 10 years. Please clarify which period of time is correct.
	See response to Question 1.
	

	34
	3/04/15
	
	With regard to the various data sources and applications listed in Section 1.9 of the RFP could you please update the table to indicate the current or preferred access to these data and applications:
a) Can the data be accessed via ODBC or other generally available standard API’s?
	See Preferred Access Method column in the table below.
	




	
	
	
		System Name
	Platform
	Description
	Data Sets
	Preferred Access Method
	

	IAPro 
	3rd Party Product  (IAPro) SQL DB
	IAPro is the primary system to track incidents and investigations.  Data is entered directly into the system by officers and supervisors.  
	         Use of Force Incidents
         Officer Vehicle Collisions
         Officer Vehicle Pursuits
         Early Intervention
         Officer Involved Shootings
         Complaints
         Force Investigation Team (FIT) Investigations
         Equal Employment Opportunity Complaints and Investigations (EEO) 
         Missed Training
         Law Suit Status
         Canine Bite Ratios
	         Data extract or direct database query
	         

	Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD)
	3rd Party Product (Versaterm)
Oracle DB
	Contains calls for service and dispatch information.
	         Performance Data
         Call Data
         Geographical
         Crisis Response Team (CRT) Response
         Deployment History
 
	         Data extract or direct database query to reporting database
	

	Records Management System (RMS)
	3rd Party Product (Versaterm)
Oracle DB
	Contains incident reports, narratives, offenses, investigations, property, etc.
	         Arrests
         Employee  Profiles/History
         Employee Status
         CRT Reports
         Street Checks
         Crisis Intervention
         Terry Stops
         Geographical
         Crime
	         Data extract or direct database query to reporting database
	         

	Learning Management System (LMS)
	3rd Party Product (Cornerstone)
Cloud solution
	Includes course scheduling, course attendance, certifications.  
	         Training
         Qualifications
	         Either a web service or some other method yet to be determined
	         

	Geographical Information System (GIS)
 
	3rd Party Product (ESRI)
	City System to store, manipulate, analyze, manage, and present geographical data.
	         Geographical
	· To store, manipulate, analyze, manage, & present geospatial data, as well as maintain access & availability with data from the rest of the City of Seattle, data should remain accessible through Esri Tools:
· Esri ArcGIS Enterprise Geodatabase (using ArcGIS for Desktop)
· Esri web Map/ Feature/ Geoprocessing/ Locator Services accessible through:
· ArcGIS for Desktop
· ArcGIS for Server
· ArcGIS Online
· Esri JavaScript API
· Collector for ArcGIS (mobile)
· To adhere to the OGC requirements of the RFP, data should also be accessible through:
· OGC GeoPackage Standard*
· OGC KML (Keyhole Markup Language) Standard
· OGC WCS (Web Coverage Service) Standard
· OGC WFS[-T] (Web Feature Service) Standard
· OGC WMS (Web Map Service) Standard
· OGC WPS (Web Processing Service) Standard

	

	Clare (Citation Warning Tracking Database)
	Custom web app (Apex)
	Citation Warning Tracking database.       
	         Citation Tracking 
	          
	          

	SECTOR
	3rd Party Product 
SQL DB
	Contains information collected during a Traffic Citation event or a Traffic Collision event.   
	         Traffic Citation Reports
         Traffic Collision Reports
	          
	      

	Versonnel
	3rd Party Product (Versaterm)
Oracle DB
	HR database for Versaterm CAD and RMS.
	         Current Assignments
         Certifications
	         Data extract or direct database query to reporting database
	

	eDirectives
	In-house Oracle APEX
	Contains directives, comprehension scores, sign- offs and supervisory accountability
	         Directive Accountability
	          
	

	In-Car Video
	3rd Party Product (Coban)
SQL DB
	Contains tabular data about video collection (officer, vehicle, dates, tags, etc.) as well as pointers to specific video for each event
	         Video
         Geographical
         Officer, Vehicle, Date, Time
         Use of Force evidence
	          
	

	Holding Cell Video
	3rd Party Product 
SQL DB
	Contains tabular data about video collection
	         Video
         Use of Force evidence
	          
	

	Performance Appraisal
	In-house Oracle APEX
	Contains annual review data
	         Annual Review data
	          
	

	Digital Evidence Management System (DEMS)
	3rd Party Product (Data Works Pro)
SQL DB
	Contains still photos of crime scenes, audio records of investigations, chain of custody information, etc.
	         Crime Scene photos
         Detective Interviews (audio recordings)
	          
	

	Range
	In-house Oracle APEX
	Range Qualification application to tracking qualifications
	         Officer Range Qualifications
	         Data extract or direct database query
	

	Hand Held Ticketing
	3rd Party Product (gtechna)
SQL DB
	Parking Citations 
	         Parking Citations
	          
	

	Litigation
	City Legal system (OnTrack)
	Litigation tracking
	         Litigation  data
	          
	

	Active Directory
	Microsoft AD
	Authentication
	         Email  Addresses
	         LDAP 
	

	HRIS
	ADP EV5
	City HR system
	         Employee data
	         Data extract or direct database query
	

	PEDS
	In-house Oracle APEX
	HR data
	         Supervisor data
         Organization Structure
         Historical Supervisor data
	         Data extract or direct database query to reporting database
	




	35
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	b) Does accessing this data require the use of a specific proprietary API supplied only by the application software vendor?
	See Preferred Access Method column in the table above.
	

	36
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	c) If so, is there any cost to the DAP vendor for use of this proprietary API?

	See Preferred Access Method column in the table above.
	

	37
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	d)  Is a database schema of the application data / tables available to DAP vendors?
	Schemas will not be available until the final stage of the selection process.
	

	38
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	e)  Will the various application vendors allow their metadata for their data schema to be exported for use in the DAP?
	Yes, to the extent that it is required and available.
	

	39
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	On page 5 of the RFP it says: “The City strongly desires to have a fully functioning DAP that meets all Phase 1 functional and technical requirements as quickly as is feasible, and preferably within eighteen months of commencement of work.” 
Question:
Was this 18 month timeline determined by any specific project planning process, or is this a general business requirement? 

	It is a general business requirement. The first Phase of the DAP supports compliance with the Consent Decree and it is high priority for the City to complete it as soon as possible.  If a proposer finds that the entire scope is not achievable within 18 months, then we would like to be presented with options that may allow us to accelerate the project.  The City will view most favorably those schedules which are both aggressive and realistic.

	

	40
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	On page 6 of the RFP it says “SPD would like Vendors to propose as an option to include lightweight workflow functionality in the DAP for the following case management processes. 
 Early Intervention
 Use of Force Review
 Complaint Review and Investigations”
Questions: 
a) How many users would need to use this workflow solution? 

	An estimated 300.
	

	41
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	b)  Please clarify how SPD sees the difference between a workflow solution and a case management solution?

	“Workflow” is the more basic term.  SPD would like workflow functionality to support its case management needs for use of force investigations, complaint investigations, and early interventions.  
	

	42
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	c) Please clarify what is meant by describing this as a lightweight workflow (“for case management processes”)

	Lightweight workflow functionality is work flow built with an existing workflow engine.  SPD has no bias towards a particular workflow engine.

	

	43
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	d) Currently IApro is used to collect data that will be needed in the workflow solution – what is the anticipated integration between IApro and the workflow solution?

	SPD anticipates that Blue Team front line software provided by IAPro will continue to serve as a primary data collection tool, but that the DAP will provide lightweight workflow functionality that will integrate with Blue Team. 
	

	44
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Current Desktop and Enterprise Reporting and GIS tool usage:
Questions: 
a) How many users are there of each of the various tools listed below?

	
	

	
	
	
		Item # 
	Tool 
	Current # users
	Future # users
	Notes

	1
	SAP Business Objects
	30
	40
	This is concurrent use, about 400 users will touch it over the course of a year. At current rate, we probably won’t see more than 40 users in the next 3 years.

	2
	Oracle BI
	150
	200
	This is concurrent use, about 1000 different users will touch it over the course of a year. Our current use Oracle BI as a business intelligence tool, it is used in APEX.

	3
	SAP Crystal Reports
	15
	30
	Assuming business does not change too much in the next 3 years

	4
	I-2 Analyst Notebook
	8
	16
	Assuming business does not change too much in the next 3 years

	5
	SPSS
	2
	4
	Assuming business does not change too much in the next 3 years

	6
	ESRI ArcGIS web
	30
	50 named, 100+ unnamed
	50 named users for ArcGIS Online; possibly many more through anonymous login

	7
	ESRI ArcGIS desktop 
	17
	14
	10 Advanced desktop concurrent licenses; 4 Basic desktop concurrent licenses; all with Spatial Analyst extension




	45
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	b) Are there any issues with the potential “sun setting” of any of these tools?
	Not as long as the functionality is reproduced in other systems/reports. Many of the SAP reports (both types) are very complex. ESRI ArcGIS is the city GIS standard for mapping & spatial analysis. Sun setting ESRI within the SPD would be need to be evaluated as a value proposition as we need to maintain compatibility with the City’s GIS system. Using other OGC-compliant software (using the appropriate OGC standards) could mitigate some of those risks.
	

	46
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	c) Do vendors need to account for licensing or other ongoing support costs for any of these tools?
	If the vendor’s solution exclusively leverages ESRI for mapping and spatial analysis, they would need to account for additional licensing costs required by the project that are over & above the licensing we currently have in place. Ongoing support would be handled by in-house GIS staff and the City of Seattle Enterprise License Agreement with ESRI.  
 If the vendor’s GIS solution does not leverage ESRI, then the vendor should account for any and all licensing costs for GIS tools, data, services, and imagery, as well as ongoing support costs for maintaining such in the application. The more standards-compliant the GIS toolset, the less ongoing support will be assigned to the vendor
	

	47
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Future users of the new DAP :
These estimates will be used to help determine the hardware sizing for the DAP. Please provide your best estimates. 


	
	

	
	
	
		Item #
	User Type 
	Can potentially log into the DAP
	Running reports and ad-hoc analyses concurrently
	Notes

	1. 
	SPD
	2000
	10
	The DAP is intended for internal SPD use. Please see response to question 10.

	2. 
	Other City Depts.
	
	
	SPD currently has several data exchanges with the County, City departments, and other agencies.  It is possible that some of these exchanges will eventually be migrated to the DAP as a data source.

	3. 
	County 
	
	
	

	4. 
	Federal Gov. Agencies
	
	
	SPD is committed to providing data to the Dept. of Justice, the Monitoring Team, and other federal agencies as needed; how that will be accomplished is to be determined.

	5. 
	General Public
	
	
	SPD anticipates that it will eventually enable the public to generate parameter driven reports from DAP data. How that will be accomplished is to be determined.




	48
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	How many mobile device users will need access to the DAP via tablets or phones – currently and in the future?
	The SPD is committed to provide data to our Patrol Staff. Initially data analytics would be delivered through existing wired and wireless mechanisms to our existing Intel based systems; however SPD would be very interested in Phase II options to deliver analytics to mobile devices including Smartphones and Tablets.
	

	49
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Which open source Enterprise Service Bus is being planned for future use and how far is this implementation?
	SPD is currently implementing a new version of our Enterprise Service Bus using the following main components: Linux, Tomcat, CXF, JPA, Camel and Active MQ.  We are well into the development stage of the base architecture and are beginning testing with the first of many data exchanges.  We will have many exchanges migrated by the end of 2014

	

	50
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	How will the new DAP need to cater for the 40 data exchanges currently occurring with other City departments? (if at all?)
	In its initial phases, it will not. SPD currently has several data exchanges with the County, City departments, and other agencies. It is possible that some of these exchanges will eventually be migrated to the DAP as a data source
	

	51
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Given the many various applications and data sources in use currently in SPD, can you highlight which are the most complex and difficult to access and how this is currently carried out?
	Additional information regarding SPD applications will be provided during an on-site briefing for Finalists.
	

	52
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Are there any plans to replace any of the existing SPD applications and their supporting databases and how will this potentially impact the DAP implementation?
	The Law Department’s On-Track system is in the early stage of a replacement project.  Some SPD HR applications may be replaced by a later phase of the City’s adoption of the Cornerstone On Demand system.  Additional information regarding these and any other efforts will be made available to Finalists as it becomes available.
	

	53
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Has a software vendor / package been chosen for the storage and accessing of video and audio data? If so can the name of that software be provided?
	Such software has not been chosen.
	

	54
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Staff availability from SPD – how many IT and business users from SPD will be available to assist with the implementation of the DAP? (Can you provide a list of the job titles and numbers of hours per week of their availability?)
	We have asked Proposers to tell us what SPD resources they believe will be required.
	

	55
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Approximately how many SPD trainers and other SPD staff will need to be trained in the use of the DAP – specifically:
a. Business end users (clarify different categories as needed):
	Please see response to Question 10.
	

	56
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	b. Analysts / “super users” creating new reports:	
	Please see response to Question 10.
	

	57
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	c. DAP administrators – administering the DAP servers, nightly processing etc.
	We have asked Proposers to tell us what SPD resources they believe will be required.

	

	58
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	Proposed Hardware configuration – some of the basic information needed to propose the hardware for the DAP is included here. (note - if the detailed information is not available, please provide your best estimate.) 
a.Who is your preferred server hardware vendor? (Dell, HP etc.)
	SPD prefers that the vendors identify their preferred solutions.
	

	59
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	b. What is the current server standard (server model / chipset type and speed)?

	SPD prefers that the vendors identify their preferred solutions.
	

	60
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	c. Are virtual servers generally in use / preferred? 
	SPD employs virtual servers and prefers them to physical deployments where the application allows.
	

	61
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	d. What is the total volume of ALL data that will be available and needs to be processed by the DAP? (GB’s?)
	Unknown at this time.  Please see response to Question 81 regarding CAD and RMS.
	

	62
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	e. What is the typical size of data (range in GB’s) that might generally be used for generating an average query or report? 
	Unknown at this time.
	

	63
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	f. What is the annual % growth of this data?
	Each year the SPD incurs another year’s worth of data at a linear growth rate of 10-20%.
	

	64
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	g. Where is most of the transactional data currently stored currently – DAS, SAN or NAS – please provide details? 
	The data sources have been identified in the RFP.  Their storage location varies and will be changing over the course of the next year or so.
	

	65
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	h. There is mention of the Nutanix platform being used - how far has this deployment progressed and / or when will this technology be in place? 
	SPD will be migrating some of its systems to the City Nutanix platform at the end of 2015 and continuing thru 2016. 
	

	66
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	i. Are there any plans to implement the Oracle Exadata technology?
	Not at this time.
	

	67
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	j. Are there any plans to implement Hadoop? 
	Not at this time.
	

	68
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	k. Are there any processing ‘bottlenecks’ in accessing this data currently? (for example - network speeds etc.) Please describe?
	Not at this time.
	

	69
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	l. What are the expected end user response times when a report or an ad-hoc query is run in real time?
	The users that run ad hoc queries are our analyst team.  They understand the relationship between the complexity of the query, amount of data returned and resources available on the server.
	

	70
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	m. What level of failover is needed for the DAP? (recovery within 1 – 2 – 3 hours etc.)
	For planning purposes Vendors may assume 12 hours, with the expectation that we will be at 4 hours for recovery in 3-5 years.
	

	71
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	The following questions shown in the table below come from the Excel spreadsheet for Technical Reponses. They come from the section on “User Interface Requirements” 
These requirements seem to point to a data entry capability required in the DAP: 

	
	

	
	
	
		P
	UI4.03
	Valid field entry values can auto-complete without using drop-down.

	HP
	UI4.04
	Ability to utilize commercially standard point & click features for editing, undo & redo in screen entries.

	HP
	UI4.05
	Ability to copy/paste into data entry fields and from data entry fields into commonly used software systems (i.e., MS Office, MS Outlook, Visio).

	HP
	UI4.06
	Ability to provide visual cues for required fields.




	
	
	
	Question: Please clarify what if any data entry capability is required in the DAP and the extent of these data entry needs? Please provide some examples of use cases so we can better understand these requirements. 

	We expect that most data entry will be for entering query parameters and other conditions in order to utilize the analytical and reporting capabilities of the DAP, or for input to workflow steps.  We do not anticipate using data entry capabilities to populate the DAP.

	

	72
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	The use of an Excel spreadsheet for entering the responses for the Technical Responses does not lend itself to embedding additional text and other objects into the Excel spreadsheet if the spreadsheet is to be opened in Office 365 – the cloud based version. 
Question: Since the Spreadsheet will be sent to you in hardcopy format, can we embed text and picture objects into the Excel document or use exactly the same table format in a Word document to make it easier for the vendor to add additional diagrams or other content. (The end result will still look the same in the printed RFP response document you receive but may not be viewable in Excel or Word if viewed online through the cloud versions of these tools.) 

	We require that Proposers make their submittals using the forms we have provided—for the Technical Requirements, that is an Excel spreadsheet, not a Word document or PDF.

	

	73
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	A related question – during the Vendor Conference at the City offices, there was mention that there were plans for SPD to move towards the use of Microsoft Office 365 – in the cloud. Can you please provide information on:
a. Estimated date when this move to Office 365 will begin if not already underway?

	SPD currently has ~ 50 Early Adopter Users using Office 365 Pro Plus.

	

	74
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	b. Estimated date when is it envisaged that all SPD users will be using Office 365?

	SPD is forecasted to complete Office 365 deployment in Q2 2016.

	

	75
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	c. Will SPD end users also be able to use both the desktop installed version of Office and the cloud version? (Office 365 allows users to use the cloud version and the desktop versions. This is an installation specific choice.)
	SPD computers will have the full Evergreen version of Office 365 installed on SPD computers, with the option to allow users to run either the full Office 2013 or web versions on Mobile devices.

	

	76
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	The following questions shown in the table below come from the Excel spreadsheet for Technical Reponses. They come from the section on “Integration Requirements”
	
	

	
	
	
		IN1.02
	Ability to integrate audio and video clips into retained data as stored objects or as links, including:

	IN1.03
	COBAN in-car videos

	IN1.04
	License Plate Recognition (LPR) vehicle and license plate photos

	
	

	IN1.06
	Ability to integrate photos (e.g.: employee, suspect) with associated data structures.




	
	
	
	Question: Please clarify what is meant by “integrate” in these requirements? Please provide some use cases that illustrates how this integration would be used by an end user? 

	Integration of these data sources would be to internalize metadata from these data files as well as links to the file, where applicable. This data would be used for reporting, analysis and linkage to related event data
	

	77
	3/04/15
	3/17/15
	The following questions shown in the table below come from the Excel spreadsheet for Technical Reponses. They come from the section on “Reporting and Analytics” 
Question: Please clarify the content of the cells to the right of the requirement - “Include Gen Tech or Arch supporting element“ Is this an instruction to the vendors – if so please clarify? 

	The notes (highlighted in yellow) below related to Technical Response requirements RE1.22, RE1.23, and RE1.24 were notes used by analysts creating and editing the requirements.  They were not intended to be part of the published requirements and Vendors should ignore these notes.

	

	
	
	
		HP
	RE1.22
	Ability to retain data for historical reporting and querying as specified for any point(s) in time or defined time period. 
	Include Gen Tech or Arch supporting element

	HP
	RE1.23
	Ability to retain reports as they were originally created, even when data changes.
	Include Gen Tech or Arch supporting element

	HP
	RE1.24
	Ability retain the parameters of a historical report and regenerate results based on current data.
	Include Gen Tech or Arch supporting element




	78
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	We recommend three environments for your data warehouse and optional workflow system, Development, Test and Production.  Is this acceptable? 

	SPD prefers 3 environments at a minimum.
	

	79
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Would SPD be interested in the deployment of the Workflow component of your project upon your existing database and development platform for cost savings?  If so, could you please provide a summary of that environment architecture?

	The City is interested in creative proposals to meet its requirements quickly and cost effectively.  An overview of SPD’s existing technical architecture is listed in Section 1.7 of the RFP.  Vendors selected as Finalists will have an opportunity for an on-site briefing where they may ask more detailed questions regarding SPD software and systems.
	

	80
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Do you have any High Availability or Disaster Recovery Requirements?

	HA and DR are definitely considerations for a DAP solution.  We would expect architecture and cost implications with high available and short recovery times.  99.9% uptime is more than adequate, with a recovery time of 12 hours; we expect to be at 4 hours for recovery in 3-5 years.   More importantly we would like the vendor to propose solutions with HA and DR options.
	

	81
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Can you provide sizing information such as current transaction system database size, number of total DAP users and number of expected DAP concurrent users?

	The anticipated total number of DAP users and number of concurrent users is provided response to Question 10.  SPD does not have high volume transactional systems.  Our data is driven by business processes which are limited on the onset by the number of human resources.  We receive about 1200 CAD calls/day and generate about 300-500 RMS reports as a result.  Everything else is a function of those numbers.
The RMS database is approximately 100 gigabytes, with a growth rate of approximately 20 gigabytes annually. The CAD database is approximately 55 gigabytes, with a growth rate of approximately 20 gigabytes annually.

	

	82
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Can we assume the data quality gaps identified by Gartner will be resolved by the time the DAP project begins? 

	No, that is not a safe assumption.  See responses to Question 19 and Question 25. We expect to be able to provide the selected vendor a schedule for when the data gaps will be addressed; the DAP implementation plan can be phased accordingly.  
	

	83
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Page 5 of the Functional requirements states: "Accordingly, the system must provide the ability for investigators to attach documents, audio, and video; to track investigative actions and progress; and to access performance records (such as with respect to training) on involved and witness officers.”   Is this capture functionality part of IApro, the Custom Workflow application or expected to be captured within the BI system?

	In general, SPD’s expectation is that the DAP will contain links and appropriate metadata relative to documents, audio files, and video files captured and held in other systems (including performance records.)  Tracking investigative actions and process is expected to be a function of the desired workflow application.
	

	84
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Beginning on page 12 of the Functional Requirements, the RFP states: "Phase 2 Capture, retain, and report on Review Board knowledge."   Is this capture functionality part of IApro, the Custom Workflow application or expected to be captured within the BI system?

	There is currently no mechanism for capturing and analyzing the outcomes of Review Board deliberations and decisions; the City is interested in how Vendors would propose using the DAP to address this.
	

	85
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Page 19 of the Functional Requirements states: "Maintain and report on the details of all litigation, whether open or closed."   Is this capture functionality part of IApro, the Custom Workflow application or expected to be captured within the BI system?

	The City Attorney’s Office is currently in the process of selecting and obtaining a new Matter Management system to capture information about litigation.  The City expects that information regarding incidents relevant to some litigation (e.g., litigation regarding use of force) will be captured in IAPro. The DAP will pull data from each of these systems.
	

	86
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Page 22 of the Functional Requirements states: "A new input and litigation management system may have to be acquired or created."  Has a litigation management system been created?  Should the scope of the DAP project include the ingestion of data from this or another to be named system?

	See response to Question 85.
	

	87
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	Page 29 of the Functional Requirements States: "Associate supervisors’ notes of issues or problems noted during yearly performance appraisal with EIS events."   Is this capture functionality part of IApro, the Custom Workflow application or expected to be captured within the BI system?

	Supervisors’ notes are not expected to be captured by the DAP.  Supervisory notes are kept in the HR systems that the DAP will pull information from.
	

	88
	3/05/15
	3/17/15
	The PWC Gap Analysis report has made a recommendation to hire "15 additional Technology Resources."   Have you and/or do you plan to fill these headcount positions?

	These additional resources have not been hired and there are currently no specific plans to do so. SPD is in the process of selecting a consultant to provide a more detailed analysis of its overall IT organization structure and staffing needs. We are also looking for recommendations from Vendors on resources that will be required to maintain the DAP.
	

	89
	3/11/15
	3/17/15
	How many end users will access the system?
	Please see response to Question 10.
	

	90
	3/11/15
	3/17/15
	Does Seattle anticipate sharing live data online with the public?
	Please see response to question 47.
	

	91
	3/11/15
	3/17/15
	Should the application be available on mobile, beat, bike and/or squad?
	Please see response to Question 48.
	

	92
	3/11/15
	3/17/15
	Shall the system have a secure API which other State, Local and Federal authorities will have access to?
	Please see response to question 47.
	

	93
	3/11/15
	3/17/15
	Please confirm that Oracle Access Manager will be available as the Single Sign-On solution for this system implementation.
	Oracle Access Manager is available, but there may be licensing impacts with using it as a single sign-on solution for the DAP.
	

	94
	3/13/15
	3/17/15
	We need some additional information to determine the cost of hardware.   We expect that SPD or the City of Seattle may have contracts with hardware vendors that are lower priced than the standard commercial pricing.  
a)       Is it possible to provide some ball park / averages prices for the following server configurations that SPD or the City would typically expect to pay for blade servers:  (we are assuming Dell since the RFP indicated that they were the preferred hardware vendor.)    

	Please provide information regarding hardware required with pricing options available to you or from the provider’s site.  Document your source and assumptions in your response. 
	

	95
	3/13/15
	3/17/15
	b)       Please also specify the preferred or standard server model currently used at SPD as requested in the table.

	The server specifications are driven by the software requirements.
	

	
	
	
		Server 
	# of cores 
	Server Memory in GB’s 
	Estimated Cost to the City (no tax)

	Dell PowerEdge M630 Blade (please specify standard server model in use or preferred?)
	8
	64 GB  (8 GB per core)
	 

	 
	16
	128 GB  (8 GB per core)
	 

	 
	24
	192 GB  (8 GB per core)
	 




	96
	3/13/15
	3/17/15
	c)       If this pricing information is not available from SPD or the City, we assume that using generally available pricing information from the Dell official web site would be acceptable?  Please confirm?  

	Please see response to question 94.
	

	97
	3/16/15
	3/17/15
	Does SPD have a budget number in mind—if so, what is it?
	SPD does not have a budget number in mind; SPD is asking Vendors to provide their best cost estimates, which we expect to be well thought out and realistic.
	

	98
	3/16/15
	3/17/15
	If there is not a specific number in mind – directional would even help  - more than the PWC estimate, less than the PWC estimate.
	As was mentioned at the Pre-proposal conference for vendors, the PWC estimate was based on an assumption that SPD would have to build or acquire key data capture systems, and such costs were included; subsequently, SPD has already acquired and implemented IAPro to capture a significant portion of the data which the DAP will require.  The City expects that costs will be less than the PWC estimate.
	

	99
	3/16/15
	3/17/15
	Are the ongoing maintenance numbers still valid?  Higher lower etc.   
	SPD has asked vendors to provide an estimate of ongoing costs as part of their proposals.
	

	100
	3/16/15
	3/17/15
	In the “Core System Platform Standards” document that is referenced in the RFP, Server Operating systems are listed.   The comment is made on page 7 that “Market direction is away from Unix variants towards OSes like Windows and Linux.”   Oracle Linux is mentioned on page 6 of the document.
0. If we propose Linux optionally as a server operating system, will this be acceptable? 

	Yes.
	

	101
	3/16/15
	3/17/15
	0. What version of Oracle Linux is in use?
	The current version should be proposed.
	

	102
	3/18/15
	3/19/15
	Would the Seattle Police Department consider extending the due date to April 27th?

	No, the due date will not be extended.
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